

# MAINE STATE LEGISLATURE

The following document is provided by the  
**LAW AND LEGISLATIVE DIGITAL LIBRARY**  
at the Maine State Law and Legislative Reference Library  
<http://legislature.maine.gov/lawlib>



Reproduced from scanned originals with text recognition applied  
(searchable text may contain some errors and/or omissions)

# ACTS AND RESOLVES

AS PASSED BY THE

One Hundred and Second Legislature

OF THE

# STATE OF MAINE

Published by the Director of Legislative Research in accordance with  
the Revised Statutes of 1964, Title 3, Section 164, Subsection 6.

---

KENNEBEC JOURNAL

AUGUSTA, MAINE

1965

---

---

**PUBLIC LAWS**  
OF THE  
**STATE OF MAINE**  
AS PASSED BY THE  
**One Hundred and Second Legislature**  
**1965**

---

---

§ 2. Rules for channel lines; enforcement

The municipal officers of all maritime towns and plantations shall make rules and regulations, with suitable provision for enforcement, for the keeping open of convenient channels for the passage of vessels in the harbors and waterways of the towns for which they act, and shall establish the boundary lines of such channels and assign suitable portions of their harbors for anchorages.

Such rules and regulations as may be made by such municipal officers shall be enforced and carried out by the harbor master of said town, who may appoint a deputy, to act in case of his absence or disability, his deputy, if any, or any other law enforcement officer of the State or any political subdivision thereof.

Effective September 3, 1965

Chapter 243

AN ACT Defining Class A Taverns Under Liquor Law.

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine, as follows:

Sec. 1. R. S., T. 28, § 2, sub-§ 22-A, additional. Section 2 of Title 28 of the Revised Statutes is amended by adding a new subsection 22-A to read as follows:

'22-A. Class A tavern. "Class A tavern" shall mean a reputable place operated by responsible persons of good reputation where no food is sold other than prepared packaged snacks and no business is carried on except the sale of cigarettes and tobacco products and except the sale of malt liquors at tables, booths and counters, and where no minors shall be permitted to remain on the licensed premises.'

Sec. 2. R. S., T. 28, § 101, sub-§ 5, amended. Subsection 5 of section 101 of Title 28 of the Revised Statutes is amended to read as follows:

'5. Shall licenses be granted in this city or town for the sale herein of malt liquor (beer, ale and other malt liquors) to be consumed on the premises of taverns and class A taverns? (Beer and Ale for Men Only)'

Sec. 3. R. S., T. 28, § 701, amended. The 2nd and 5th paragraphs of section 701 of Title 28 of the Revised Statutes are amended to read as follows:

'Population shall be determined according to each Federal Decennial Census as shown by any official report authorized by the Federal Census Act and shall apply to the licensing period next following such official report.

Hotel - Malt liquor .....	\$200.00
Club - Spirituous and vinous .....	200.00
Club - Malt liquor .....	100.00
Public service - Spirituous and vinous .....	200.00

Public service - Malt liquor .....	\$100.00
Restaurant, class A - Spirituous and vinous .....	750.00
Restaurant - Malt liquor only .....	200.00
Restaurant - Vinous liquor only .....	200.00
Tavern - Malt liquor only .....	300.00
<b>Tavern, class A - Malt liquor only .....</b>	<b>400.00</b>
Retail store - Malt liquor only .....	100.00'

'Fees for part-time licenses shall be :

Part-time - Hotels and clubs - Spirituous and vinous - 1/2 full-time fee at their location.	
Part-time - Restaurant, class A - Spirituous and vinous .....	\$375.00
Part-time - Hotel or restaurant - Malt liquor only .....	125.00
Part-time - Club - Malt liquor only .....	50.00
Part-time - Tavern - Malt liquor only .....	150.00
<b>Part-time - Tavern, class A - malt liquor only .....</b>	<b>200.00'</b>

**Sec. 4. R. S., T. 28, § 702, amended.** The last paragraph of section 702 of Title 28 of the Revised Statutes is amended to read as follows:

'Licensed hotels, **class A taverns** and restaurant malt liquor licensees who have been issued such special amusement permit may charge admission **in designated areas approved by the commission.**'

**Sec. 5. R. S., T. 30, § 2751, amended.** Section 2751 of Title 30 of the Revised Statutes is amended to read as follows:

**§ 2751. License required**

No person shall be a common innkeeper ~~or~~, victualer **or tavernkeeper** without a license, under a penalty of not more than \$50.'

**Sec. 6. R. S., T. 30, § 2752, amended.** The 2nd sentence of section 2752 of Title 30 of the Revised Statutes is amended to read as follows:

'At such meeting they may license under their hands as many persons of good moral character, and under such restrictions and regulations as they deem necessary, to be innkeepers ~~and~~, victualers **and tavernkeepers** in said town, until the day succeeding the first Monday in May of the next year, in such house or other building as the license specifies.'

**Sec. 7. R. S., T. 30, § 2753, amended.** The first paragraph of section 2753 of Title 30 of the Revised Statutes is amended to read as follows:

'No person shall receive his license as an innkeeper ~~or~~, victualer or **tavern-keeper** until he has given his bond to the treasurer, to the acceptance of the licensing board granting it, with one or more sureties in the penal sum of \$300, in substance as follows, namely:'

**Sec. 8. R. S., T. 30, § 2754, amended.** Section 2754 of Title 30 of the Revised Statutes is amended to read as follows:

**§ 2754. Fee and record**

Every person licensed as an innkeeper ~~or~~, victualer **or tavernkeeper** shall pay to the treasurer for the use of the town a fee of \$1 and such additional amount as the town may by ordinance or bylaw prescribe. Such ordinance or bylaw may, for the purpose of fixing such fees, establish classifications of victualers according to the size, nature or other condition of business conducted and may prescribe for each of such classifications an appropriate fee which shall not in any case exceed the sum of \$10 in towns of less than 10,000 population or the sum of \$20 in towns over 10,000 in population, excepting any town wherein a larger fee was permitted by law on July 20, 1939.'

Effective September 3, 1965

## Chapter 244

### AN ACT Revising the Urban Renewal Law.

*Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine, as follows:*

**Sec. 1. R. S., T. 30, § 4801, sub-§ 12, amended.** Subsection 12 of section 4801 of Title 30 of the Revised Statutes is amended to read as follows:

'**12. Urban renewal plan or renewal plan.** "Urban renewal plan" or "renewal plan" means a plan, as it exists from time to time for an urban renewal project, which plan shall conform to the ~~general plan for the municipality as a whole~~ **comprehensive plan as set forth in sections 4951 to 4957** except as provided in section 4808; and shall be sufficiently complete to indicate such land acquisition, demolition and removal of structures, redevelopment, improvements and rehabilitation as may be proposed to be carried out in the urban renewal area, zoning and planning changes, if any, land uses, maximum densities, building requirements, and the plan's relationship to definite local objectives respecting appropriate land uses, improved traffic, public transportation, public utilities, recreational and community facilities, and other public improvements.'

**Sec. 2. R. S., T. 30, § 4804, sub-§ 5, amended.** Subsection 5 of section 4804 of Title 30 of the Revised Statutes is amended to read as follows:

'**5. Surveys, appraisals, studies and plans.** Within its area of operation, to make or have made by the planning board or other agency, public or private, all surveys, appraisals, studies and plans, including the preparation of a ~~master plan~~ **community renewal program** for the municipality, necessary to the carrying out of the purposes of this subchapter, and to contract or cooperate with any and all persons or agencies, public or private, in the making and carrying out of such surveys, appraisals, studies and plans.'